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TOWN OF APPLE VALLEY 
TOWN COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Town Council  Date: June 11, 2013 
 
From:  Frank W. Robinson    Item No:  12 
 Town Manager 
  
Subject: APPROVE EXECUTION OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

(MOU) TO PARTICIPATE FINANCIALLY IN A PUBLIC SAFETY JOINT 
POWERS AUTHORITY (JPA) FEASIBILITY STUDY 

 
T.M.  Approval:_____________________  Budgeted Item:  Yes   No  N/A 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
It is recommended that the Town Council approve a Staff recommendation to  
participate financially with the Cities of Hesperia, Adelanto and Victorville in a Public 
Safety Joint Powers Authority (JPA) feasibility study. 

 
SUMMARY: 
 
On February 26, 2013 the Town Council approved The Town of Apple Valley 
participating in a Request for Proposal (RFP) process for identifying and selecting a 
qualified consultant to conduct a feasibility study for creation of a Public Safety Joint 
Powers Authority (JPA).   
 
Over the last several years, previous City Councils have raised concerns over rising 
public safety costs and, in particular, administrative costs of the County contracts.  The 
administrative fee for the Sheriff contract was increased last year, and there has been 
discussion from the County Chief Executive Officer that the County may begin to charge 
for services that have not been charged in the past, for example, helicopter usage.  As 
was stated in the February 26, 2013, Staff Report, County contract salaries, benefits, 
and other operating costs are generally outside the control of the Town.   
 
In Fiscal Year 2012-2013, the Town Council approved a law enforcement staffing level 
of 51 sworn and 20 non-sworn County personnel.  The County contract amount of 
$10,718,888 covers salary and benefits for the 71 County Sheriff’s personnel; costs for 
29 cars and 7 trucks (all County owned vehicles); radios and dispatch services; and the 
County Administrative fee (COWCAP). The Town also budgets approximately  
$553,251 separately from the County contract for vehicle fuel and maintenance, office 
supplies, CAL-ID identification system, training and education, and facility maintenance.  
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The Cities of Hesperia, Victorville and Adelanto also contract for police services with 
similar costs. 
 
Last year the administrative fee for the Sheriff contract was increased from the original 
3% to 5%, and the County’s Chief Executive Officer is indicating that the County may 
begin to charge contract cities for services that have not been charged for in the past, 
for example, helicopter usage. The Town Administration believes there are many 
benefits to contracting for police services; however, the continual increases in costs are 
placing enormous pressure on the General Fund Operating Budget. 
  
In response to an initiative of the City of Hesperia to explore the possibility of a regional 
public safety approach to providing for the safety and welfare of the residents in the 
Victor Valley, the Cities of Hesperia, Victorville, Adelanto and the Town of Apple Valley 
Councils approved participation in issuing a Public Safety JPA Feasibility study RFP. 
 
The City/Town managers developed a Scope of Work for the JPA feasibility study, and 
this was incorporated into an RFP that was prepared by the City of Hesperia.  The RFP 
was issued  on April 1, 2013.  Eleven firms responded with proposals due by April 29, 
2013.  Six proposals were received.  The selection committee made up of the City/Town 
managers reviewed the six proposals, and determined that an interview of the top three 
firms was warranted.  Interviews were conducted by the selection committee on May 13, 
2013, and after careful and detailed deliberation, the committee has determined that 
Citygate Associates is the most qualified consultant to perform the JPA feasibility study. 
 
Citygate Associates is located in Folsom, California, and has completed over 140 public 
safety projects throughout the United States.  Citygate’s project team consists of 
experienced fire service, police service, municipal finance, and human resources 
professionals with extensive local government agency experience, both as practitioners 
and consultants.  Their police consolidation experience includes a study currently being 
conducted for the Cities of Brea, Buena Park, Fullerton, La Habra, Yorba Linda and 
Placentia; and a study recently completed for the Cities of Burlingame and San Mateo.  
The firm also has extensive experience in fire consolidation studies. 
 
Separate Feasibility Studies will be prepared for a Police JPA component and a Fire 
JPA component.  The Studies will include a detailed review of the current organization 
and staffing operations which include meetings with Police Captains and Fire Chiefs, 
and tour of all public safety facilities; recommendations of an organizational structure for 
each JPA including administration, legal, risk management, human resources, finance, 
information systems, and planning; a comprehensive salary and benefit survey; options, 
projected annual operating budgets, capital and transitions costs, advantages and 
disadvantages of creating a JPA, and; the feasibility of a JPA in comparison to existing 
and future costs with the County contracts.  It is anticipated that the study will be 
completed prior to the end of the calendar year.  The findings and recommendations will 
be presented to a joint City/Town Council meeting with all four agencies. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
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The total fees of the JPA feasibility study for the Police Component and Fire Component 
is $109,567 for police and  $90,321 for fire.  The Police Component of the Study would 
include the Town of Apple Valley, and Cities of Adelanto, Hesperia and Victorville, and 
the cost would be equally shared by each city/town.  Since the Apple Valley Fire 
Protection District serves the Apple Valley area, the Fire Component of the Study would 
only involve the Cities of Adelanto, Hesperia and Victorville, and the cost would be 
shared equally by these three cities.  The City of Hesperia will be the lead agency, and 
the contract will be between the Hesperia and Citygate Associates, LLC.  The City of 
Hesperia will process all payment for services, and invoice, on a monthly basis, the 
other cities/town for their share of the fee. 
 
The attached Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) identifies the responsibilities of 
each agency, and includes the Professional Services Agreement  between the City of 
Hesperia and Citygate Associates.  The MOU includes language regarding 
reimbursement by the Cities of Adelanto and Victorville, and Town of Apple Valley to the 
City of Hesperia for their share of the fee of the separate study components.  A 
contingency of 5% be included in the approved contract amount which will address any 
minor changes to the scope of services or additional meetings that may be warranted as 
the feasibility study progresses. 
 
The total fee, with contingency, for the Police Study Component is $115,048 and would 
be shared equally by the Cities of Adelanto, Hesperia, Victorville, and the Town of Apple 
Valley with a total cost of $28,762 to each agency.  This cost has been included in the 
Town’s Fiscal Year 2013-14 Operating Budget. 
 
ATTACHMENT: 
 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
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